When Recorded Return to: Muirhouse, LLC 308 East 4500 South, Suite 200 Murray, Utah 84107

Tax Serial Number: 21-08-101-020-0000

12840454 8/30/2018 4:20:00 PM \$28.00 Book - 10708 Pg - 2704-2713 ADAM GARDINER Recorder, Salt Lake County, UT US TITLE BY: eCASH, DEPUTY - EF 10 P.

MUIRHOUSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC. BY-LAWS

ARTICLE I - NAME AND LOCATION

The name of the Corporation is **MUIRHOUSE HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.**, hereinafter referred to as the "Association", for and in behalf of the recorded plat, "MUIRHOUSE SUBDIVISION" recorded in the Recorder's Office in Salt Lake County, Utah, in Plat Book <u>2018P</u>, Page <u>292</u>. The principal office of the Association shall be located at 308 East 4500 South, Suite 200, Murray, Utah 84107, but meetings of members and directors may be held at such places within the State of Utah as may be designated by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE II - DEFINITIONS

- Section 1. "Properties" shall mean and refer to that certain real property in Taylorsville City, Salt Lake County described in the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions referred to in Exhibit A hereof, and such additions thereto as may hereafter be brought within the jurisdiction of the Association.
- Section 2. "Declaration" shall mean and refer to the Declaration of Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions applicable to the Properties and heretofore recorded among the Salt Lake County Recorder's Office and any additions, amendments or modifications thereto.
- Section 3. "Member" or "Members" shall mean and refer to those persons entitled to membership in the Association, as provided in the Declaration.
 - Section 4. Any other terms used herein shall have the meanings given to them in the Declaration.

ARTICLE III - MEETING OF MEMBERS

- Section 1. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Members shall be held within one (1) year from the date of incorporation of the Association, and each subsequent regular annual meeting of the Members shall be held on the same day of the same month of each year thereafter, at a time and place within the State of Utah selected by the Board of Directors of the Association. If the day for the annual meeting of the Members is a legal holiday, the meeting will be held on the first day following which is not a legal holiday.
- Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Members may be called at any time by the President or by the Board of Directors, or upon written request of the Members who are (i) entitled to vote one-fourth (1/4) of all of the votes of the Class A membership, or (ii) entitled to vote one-fourth (1/4) of all of the votes of the Class B membership.
- Section 3. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of each meeting of the Members shall be given by, or at the direction of, the Secretary or person authorized to call the meeting, by mailing a copy of such notice, postage prepaid, at least fifteen (15) days but not more than sixty (60) days before such meeting to each Member entitled to vote thereat, addressed to the Member's address last appearing on the books of the Association, or supplied by such Member to the Association for the purpose of notice. Such notice shall specify the place, day and hour of the meeting, and, in the case of a special meeting, the purpose of the meeting. At the written request of a member the notice may be sent via email.
- Section 4. Quorum. The presence at the meeting of Members or of proxies entitled to cast one-tenth (1/10) of the votes of each class of membership shall constitute a quorum for any action except as otherwise provided in the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration, these By-Laws or applicable law. If, however, such quorum shall not be present or represented at any meeting, the Members entitled to vote at the meeting shall have power to adjourn the meeting from time to time, without notice other than announcement at the meeting, until a quorum as aforesaid shall be present or be represented.

Section 5. Proxies. At all meetings of Members, each Member may vote in person or by proxy. All proxies shall be in writing and filed with the Secretary. Every proxy shall be revocable and shall automatically cease upon conveyance by the Member of his Lot.

ARTICLE IV - BOARD OF DIRECTORS: SELECTION; TERM OF OFFICE

- Section 1. Number. The affairs of this Association shall be managed initially by a Board of three (3) directors, who need not be members of the Association. A majority of the entire Board of Directors is authorized to increase the number of Directors to a maximum of nine (9).
- Section 2. Term of Office. From and after the first annual meeting of the Members, the term of office of the directors shall be staggered. At the first annual meeting the Members shall elect one-third (1/3) of the directors for a term of one (1) year, one-third (1/3) of the directors for a term of three (3) years; and at each annual meeting thereafter the Members shall elect one-third (1/3) of the total number of directors for a term of three (3) years.
- Section 3. Removal. Any director may be removed from the Board, with or without cause, by a majority vote of the Members of the Association. In the event of death, resignation or removal of a director, his or her successors shall be selected by the remaining Members of the Board and shall serve for the unexpired term of his or her predecessor.
- Section 4. Compensation. No director shall receive compensation for any service he or she may render to the Association. However, any director may be reimbursed for actual expenses incurred in the performance of his or her duties.
- Section 5. Action Taken Without a Meeting. The directors shall have the right to take any action in the absence of a meeting, which they could take under Utah law at a closed meeting by obtaining the written approval of all the directors. Any action so approved shall have the same effect as though taken at a closed meeting of the directors.

ARTICLE V - NOMINATION AND ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

- Section 1. Nomination. Nomination for election to the Board of Directors shall be made by a Nominating Committee. Nominations may also be made from the floor at the annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall consist of a chairman, who shall be a Member of the Board of Directors, and two (2) or more Members of the Association. The Nominating Committee shall be appointed by the President of the Association prior to each annual meeting until the close of the next annual meeting and such appointment shall be announced at each annual meeting. The Nominating Committee shall make as many nominations for election to the Board of Directors as it shall in its discretion determine, but not less than the number of vacancies. Nominations may be made from among Members or non-members of the Association.
- Section 2. Election. Election to the Board of Directors shall be by secret written ballot. At such election, the Members or their proxies may cast, in respect to each vacancy, as many votes as they are entitled to exercise under the provisions of the Declaration. The persons receiving the largest number of votes shall be elected. Cumulative voting is not permitted.

ARTICLE VI - MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

- Section 1. Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at least quarterly, at such place and hour as may be fixed from time to time by resolution of the Board. Should said meeting fall upon a legal holiday, then that meeting shall be held at the same time on the next day which is not a legal holiday.
- Section 2. Special Meetings. Special meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held when called by the President of the Association, or by any two (2) directors, after not less than three (3) days notice to each director.
 - Section 3. Quorum. A majority of the number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction

of business. Every act or decision done or made by a majority of the directors present at a duly held meeting at which a quorum is present shall be regarded as the act of the Board.

ARTICLE VII - POWERS, RIGHTS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

<u>Section 1</u>. <u>Powers</u>. The Board of Directors shall have the power to:

- (a) adopt and publish rules and regulations governing the use of the Common Area, including any improvements and amenities located thereon, and the personal conduct of the Members and their guests thereon, and to establish penalties for the infraction thereof;
- (b) suspend the voting rights and right to use of any recreational facilities located on any Common Area of a Member during any period in which such Member shall be in default in the payment of any assessment levied by the Association. Such rights may also be suspended, after notice and hearing, for a period not to exceed sixty (60) days for infraction of published rules and regulations or any provisions of the Declaration;
- (c) exercise for the Association all powers, duties and authority vested in or delegated to this Association and not reserved to the membership by other provisions of these By-Laws, the Articles of Incorporation, or the Declaration;
- (d) declare the office of a member of the Board of Directors to be vacant in the event such member shall be absent from three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the Board of Directors; and
- (e) employ a manager, independent contractor, or such other individuals, entities or employees as they deem necessary and to prescribe their duties.

Section 2. Specific Right of Inspection of the Board of Directors

Every Director of the Association will have the absolute right at any reasonable time to inspect all books, records and documents of the Association and the physical properties owned or controlled by the Association. The foregoing right of inspection includes a right to make extracts and copies of documents.

Section 3. Duties. It shall be the duty of the Board of Directors to:

- (a) cause to be kept a complete record of all its acts and corporate affairs and to present a statement thereof to the Members at the annual meeting of the Members, or at any special meeting when such a statement is requested in writing by one-fourth (1/4) of the Class A Members or of the Class B Members who are entitled to vote;
- (b) supervise all officers, agents and employees of this Association, and to see that their duties are properly performed;
 - (c) as more fully provided in the Declaration, to:
- (1) fix the amount of the annual assessment against each Lot at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period;
- (2) send written notice of each assessment to every Owner subject thereto at least thirty (30) days in advance of each annual assessment period;
- (3) foreclose the lien against any Lots for which assessments are not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date thereof or to bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same;
- (d) issue, or cause an appropriate officer to issue, upon demand by any person, a certificate setting forth whether or not any assessment has been paid. A reasonable charge may be made by the Board for the issuance of

these certificates. If a certificate states an assessment has been paid, such certificate shall be conclusive evidence of such payment;

- (e) procure and maintain adequate liability and hazard insurance on property owned by the Association;
- (f) cause all officers or employees having fiscal responsibilities to be bonded as it may deem appropriate; and
- (g) cause to be maintained the Common Area and any other areas shown on the Plat that may be owned by governmental entities who are not maintaining such areas.

ARTICLE VIII - OFFICERS AND THEIR DUTIES

- <u>Section 1.</u> <u>Enumeration of Officers.</u> The officers of this Association shall be a President and Vice-President, who shall at all times be members of the Board of Directors, a Secretary, and a Treasurer, and such other officers as the Board may from time to time by resolution create.
- Section 2. Election of Officers. The election of officers shall take place at the first meeting of the Board of Directors, and thereafter at the meeting of the Board of Directors following each annual meeting of the Members.
- Section 3. Term. The officers of this Association shall be elected annually by the Board and each shall hold office for a period as described in Article IV Section 2, unless any officer shall sooner resign, or shall be removed, or otherwise disqualified to serve.
- Section 4. Special Appointments. The Board may elect such other officers as the affairs of the Association may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as the Board may, from time to time, determine.
- Section 5. Resignation and Removal. Any officer may be removed from office with or without cause by the Board. Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board, the President or the Secretary. Such resignation shall take effect on the date of receipt of such notice or at any later time specified therein, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.
- Section 6. <u>Vacancies</u>. A vacancy in any office may be filled by appointment by the Board. The officer appointed to such vacancy shall serve for the remainder of the term of the officer he or she replaced.
- <u>Section 7.</u> <u>Multiple Offices.</u> The offices of Secretary and Treasurer may be held by the same person. No person shall simultaneously hold more than one (1) of any of the other offices except in the case of offices created pursuant to Section 4 of this Article.

Section 8. Duties. The duties of the officers are as follows:

- (a) <u>President.</u> The President shall preside at all meetings of the Members and of the Board of Directors and shall see that orders and resolutions of the Board are carried out. The President shall have the authority to sign all leases, mortgages, deeds, and other written instruments and shall co-sign all checks and promissory notes.
- (b) <u>Vice-President</u>. The Vice-President shall act in the place and stead of the President in the event of the President's absence, inability or refusal to act, and shall exercise and discharge such other duties as may be required by the Board. The Vice-President shall likewise have the authority to sign all leases, mortgages, deeds, and other written instruments.
- (c) <u>Secretary</u>. The Secretary shall record the votes and keep the minutes of all meetings and proceedings of the Board and the Members; keep the corporate seal of the Association and affix it on all papers requiring

said seal; serve notice of meetings of the Board and of the Members; keep appropriate current records showing the Members of the Association together with their addresses, and shall perform such other duties as required by the Board.

(d) <u>Treasurer</u>. The Treasurer shall receive and deposit in appropriate bank accounts all monies of the Association and shall disburse such funds as directed by resolution of the Board of Directors; shall sign all books of account; shall engage the services of a certified public accountant to the extent authorized by the Board of Directors; shall cause all tax returns to be filed as required; and shall prepare an annual budget and a statement of income and expenditures to be presented to the membership at its regular annual meeting, and deliver a copy to each of the members.

ARTICLE IX - INDEMNIFICATION OF OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Each officer and director of the Association, in consideration of his or her services, shall be indemnified by the Association to the extent permitted by law against expenses and liabilities reasonably incurred by him or her in connection with the defense of any action, suit or proceeding, civil or criminal, to which he or she may be a party by reason of being or having been a director or officer of the Association. The foregoing right to indemnification shall be exclusive of any other rights to which the director or officer or person may be entitled by law or agreement or vote of the Members or otherwise.

ARTICLE X - COMMITTEES

The Association shall appoint an Architectural Review Committee, as provided in the Declaration; and a Nominating Committee, as provided in these By-Laws. In addition, the Board of Directors shall appoint such other committees as deemed appropriate in carrying out its purpose.

ARTICLE XI - BOOKS AND RECORDS

The books, records and papers of the Association shall at all times, during reasonable business hours, be subject to inspection by any Member. The Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation and the By-Laws of the Association shall be available for inspection by any Member at the principal office of the Association, where copies may be purchased at reasonable cost.

ARTICLE XII - ASSESSMENTS

As more fully provided in the Declaration, each member is obligated to pay to the Association annual and special assessments which are secured by a continuing lien upon the lot against which the assessment is made. Any assessments or portions thereof which are not paid when due shall be delinquent. If the assessment is not paid within thirty (30) days after the due date, the assessment shall bear interest from the date of delinquency at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum, and shall be subject to a late charge of Ten Dollars (\$10.00) per month until paid or ten percent (10%) of the Assessment, whichever is greater, and the Association may declare the entire balance of the assessment immediately due and payable. The Association may bring an action at law against the Owner personally obligated to pay the same or foreclose the lien against the Lot, and interest, costs and reasonable attorneys' fees of any such action shall be added to the amount of such assessment. No Owner may waive or otherwise escape liability for the assessment provided for herein by non-use of the Common Area or abandonment of the Owner's Lot.

ARTICLE XIII - AMENDMENTS

Section 1. These By-Laws may be amended, at a regular or special meeting of the Members, by a vote of two-thirds (2/3) of a quorum of Members present in person or by proxy, except that the Federal Housing Administration or the Veterans Administration or the Department of Housing and Urban Development, or any successor agencies thereto, shall have the right to veto amendments while there is a Class B membership if any such agency or any successor agencies thereto have approved the Properties, any part thereof, or any Lot, for federal mortgage financing.

Section 2. In the case of any conflict between the Articles of Incorporation and these By-Laws, the Articles shall control; and in the case of any conflict between the Declaration and these By-Laws, the Declaration shall control.

ARTICLE XIV - MISCELLANEOUS

The fiscal year of the Association shall be determined by the Board in its discretion.

Legal Description, Phase 1

BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

BEGINNING AT A POINT N89°58'12"E 866.99 FEET ALONG THE SECTION LINE, AND S00°01'48"E 372.99 FEET FROM THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 2 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST, SALT LAKE BASE AND MERIDIAN; AND RUNNING THENCE S00°01'48"E 250.03 FEET; THENCE N89°58'12"E 458.47 FEET TO THE WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY AND NO ACCESS LINE OF UTAH TRANSIT AUTHORITY STATE ROUTE 154; THENCE ALONG SAID WESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE S00°13'22"W 909.38 FEET; THENCE N89°49'36"W 55.00 FEET; THENCE N00°13'22"E 436.26 FEET; THENCE N89°46'12"W 28.53 FEET; THENCE N85°00'20"W 30.10 FEET; THENCE N89°46'10"W 355.00 FEET; THENCE S85°28'01"W 30.10 FEET; THENCE N89°46'10"W 27.24 FEET; THENCE S00°13'50"W 154.61 FEET; THENCE N26°21'38"W 166.17 FEET; THENCE N36°12'38"W 71.27 FEET; THENCE N00°01'48"W 493.75 FEET; THENCE S89°53'09"E 118.96 FEET; THENCE N00°04'05"E 175.51 FEET; THENCE N89°57'54"E 66.60 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING

CONTAINS 8.20 ACRES IN AREA

(Remainder of page intentionally left blank)

File Number: 10934656

Non-Profit Corporation Articles

ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION OF

Muirhouse Homeowners Association

We, the undersigned natural persons all being of the age of eighteen years or more, acting as incorporators under the Utah Revised Nonprofit Corporation Act, adopt the following Articles of Incorporation for such Corporation:

Article I Name

The name of the corporation is Muirhouse Homeowners Association

Article II Purpose

Residential homeowners association to maintain common areas of neighborhood.

To engage in any and all other lawful purposes, activities and pursuits, which are substantially similar to the foregoing and which are or may hereafter be authorized by Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and are consistent with those powers described in the Utah Nonprofit Corporation and Cooperation Association Act, as amended and supplemented.

Article III Name and Address of Registered Agent

The address of the corporation's initial registered office shall be:

308 E 4500 S Ste 200 Murray, UT 84107

The corporation's initial registered agent at such address shall be:

Barry Gittleman

State of Utah Department of Commerce Division of Corporations & Commercial Code

This certifies that this registration has been filed and approved on 3, August 2018 in the office of the Division and hereby issues this Certification thereof.

KATHY BERG Division Director

Article IV **Names and Addresses of Incorporators**

The name(s) and address(es) of the incorporators are:

Incorporator #1
Barry Gittleman
308 E 4500 S Ste 200
Murray , UT 84107
Elliott Jenkins (POA or AIF)
Signature

In Witness Whereof I / We have executed these Articles of Incorporation on 3 August, 2018 and say:

That they are all incorporators herein; that they have read the above and foregoing Articles of Incorporation; know the contents thereof and that the same is true to the best of their knowledge and belief, excepting as to matters herein alleged upon information and belief and as to those matters they believe to be true.

Article V Members

The nonprofit corporation will have voting members

Article VI Shares

The nonprofit corporation will not issue shares evidencing membership or interests in water or other property rights.

Article VII

Directors/Trustees/Officers

The name(s), address(es) and signature(s) of the director(s)/trustee(s)/officer(s) are:

Director #1
Barry Gittleman
308 E 4500 S Ste 200
Murray , UT 84107
Elliott Jenkins (POA or AIF)
Signature

Director #2 Jon Southern 308 E 4500 S Ste 200 Murray, UT 84107 Elliott Jenkins (POA or AIF) Signature

Director #3
Philip Mosher
308 E 4500 S Ste 200
Murray , UT 84107
Elliott Jenkins (POA or AIF)
Signature

Article VIII

The period of duration of this corporation is Perpetual

Article IX Principal Place of Business

The street address of the principal place of the business is:

308 E 4500 S Ste 200 Murray, UT, 84107

Under GRAMA {63-2-201}, all registration information maintained by the Division is classified as public record. For confidentiality purposes, the business entity physical address may be provided rather than the residential or private address of any individual affiliated with the entity.